
 

 
City of Newberg: TLT Ad Hoc Committee Agenda (December 5, 2018) Page 1 of 1 

    

 

 

 

  

 TRANSIENT LODGING TAX AD HOC COMMITTEE AGENDA 

DECEMBER 5, 2018, 4:00 PM 

NEWBERG CITY HALL, 414 E FIRST STREET 

 

 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 

 

IV. MINUTES OF THE MARKETING SUBCOMMITTEE – OCTOBER 22, 2018  

 

V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

VI. VISIT NEWBERG – TOURISM ORGANIZATION – DRAFT AGREEMENT AND BYLAWS  

 

VII. STATUS OF DESTINATION DEVELOPMENT-MARKETING GRANTS FY 17/18 (NEWBERG 

DOWNTOWN WINERIES ASSOCIATION, CHEHALEM CULTURAL CENTER, AND 

WOLVES & PEOPLE) 

 

VIII. TLT MEMBER UPDATES 

 

IX. NEXT MEETING – JANUARY 2, 2019 

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 
ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the Office Assistant 

II of any special physical or language accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible and no later than 48 business hours 

prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, please contact the Office Assistant II at (503) 544-7788. For TTY services please dial 711. 

Page 1 of 49 



 

 

 

 

 

 
City of Newberg: TLT Ad Committee Meeting November 7, 2018  Page 1 of 6 

 

TRANSIENT LODGING TAX AD HOC COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

November 7, 2018, 4:00 PM 

Permit Center Conference Room, Newberg City Hall 

414 E First Street 

 

 

Chair Lewis called the meeting to order at 4:03 p.m.  

 

ROLL CALL 
Members Present: Dennis Lewis, Chair  Sheila Nicholas, Vice Chair 

 Jessica Bagley   Ashley Lippard (arrived 4:17) 

 Megan Carda   Rob Felton 

 Robert Griffin   Brian Love 

  Shannon Buckmaster   Kyle M. Lattimer (arrived 4:08) 

 Lori Louis  Loni Parrish 

 Elise Yarnell-Hollamon  Mayor Andrews, Ex Officio 

 Joe Hannan, Ex Officio 

 

Members Absent: 

 

Staff Present:  Doug Rux, Community Development Director 

 

Guests Present: Ted Crawford 

  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

MOTION:  Robert Griffin/Brian Love moved to approve minutes of September 5, 2018 Motion carried (11 

Yes/ 0 No). 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  
 

None. 

 

TOURISM MARKETING ORGANIZATION 

 

CDD Rux recapped the memorandum in the TLT Committee packet. 

 

Member Carda inquired if the TLT Committee could continue after the new organization is established. 

 

Member Parrish suggested to appoint the new Tourism Marketing Board first and that there is not a lot of legal 

work to form a non-profit organization. 

 

Member Felton noted it could take several months to establish a non-profit. 

 

Chair Lewis asked who on the Committee would be willing to continue for three more months. There was 

consensus of the members to continue. 

 

Page 2 of 49 



 

 

 

 

 

 
City of Newberg: TLT Ad Committee Meeting November 7, 2018  Page 2 of 6 

Member Parrish suggested letting the new Tourism Board finalize the bylaws. 

 

Member Felton suggested establishing a subcommittee oi work on the draft bylaws for the new organization. 

 

Chait Lewis asked Committee member s who would like to work on the draft bylaws. 

 

Member Buckmaster inquired if some of the Committee members would be interested in a position on the new 

Board and that existing members could assist with the transition. 

 

Chair Lewis inquired of there were any concerns with the McMinnville document as a template for the new 

bylaws. 

 

Member Card noted that she encouraged using the McMinnville document as a template. 

 

Member Parish inquired of the percent of TLT funds going to the new organizations in the agreement is correct. 

 

CDD Rux indicated he will work with the Finance Director to get the correct percentage and number. 

 

Member Parrish inquired if it had been discussed between the City and Chamber on the Visitor Center. 

 

Member Buckmaster noted the Chamber will continue operating the Visitor Center per the existing contract. 

 

Member Parrish inquired if the Chamber is looking at moving to a new location. 

 

Member Buckmaster noted the Chamber is looking at all options and not just in the downtown area. 

 

Public Records 

 

CDD Rux raised the question about public records applying to the new organization. 

 

Ted Crawford shared that considering the organizations documents as public records ties the hands of the Board 

and reduces their ability to be nimble. 

 

Member Buckmaster shared that the new organization would be providing an annual report with quarterly 

updates. 

 

Bylaws 

 

There was a general discussion of drafting bylaws. Members Yarnell-Hollamon, Parrish, Felton and Ted 

Crawford agreed to be the subcommittee to prepare draft bylaws. 

 

Member Carda noted she would share the raft Yamhill County Tourism Committee draft bylaws. 

 

Member Parrish noted she would share the Chehalem Cultural Center bylaws. 

 

Annual Report 

 

Page 3 of 49 



 

 

 

 

 

 
City of Newberg: TLT Ad Committee Meeting November 7, 2018  Page 3 of 6 

Ted Crawford noted that the Yamhill County Tourism Committee have language in their draft document on 

providing reporting. 

 

Member Griffin indicated it seems clear to use the interim Annual Report process outlined in the draft 

Agreement. He inquired when names would go to the City Council for the Board positions. 

 

Member Parrish shared the Committee should try to get the bylaws, Agreement and names of potential Board 

members by the end of November. 

 

Open Meetings 

 

Member Buckmaster shared that the Chamber Board meetings are not open to the public. 

 

Chair Lewis indicated he is ok with having Board meetings open to the public. 

 

Ex Officio Hannan noted the City is different because of use of public funds for the tourism organization. 

 

Chair Lewis noted the organization is trying to do marketing and the tax is paid by visitors and not property 

owners. He would not want to put tight reins on the organization. 

 

Member Felton noted that as a non-profit it will need to have minutes. 

 

Ex Officio Hannan noted only the City has the authority to impose a tax and the Chamber imposes a fee for 

membership. 

 

Ted Crawford shared that when Dundee built the fire station the contractor did not have to hold public 

meetings. 

 

Member Griffin inquired if the Committee could get a legal opinion. 

 

Member Parrish inquired fi the Committee could say it wants it to be like the Chamber. 

 

Lori Louis noted that it is the law the TLT tax has to be spent on tourism. 

 

Ex Officio Andrews asked how much or often has the TLT Committee fund interference from the public. 

 

 Member Parrish noted processing the grants was difficult. 

 

Member Lippard noted the Wolves & People grant application had objectors’ base don and use issues. 

 

Member Buckmaster indicated open meetings may be an issue for the bylaws and not the Agreement. 

 

Dundee 

 

Chair Lewis noted the topic is should the organization be a joint effort between Newberg and Dundee. 

 

Member Buckmaster indicated that in October the Newberg City Council did not hear support on including 

Dundee. She asked would you other communities such as St Paul, Yamhill, Carlton or Sherwood. 

Page 4 of 49 



 

 

 

 

 

 
City of Newberg: TLT Ad Committee Meeting November 7, 2018  Page 4 of 6 

 

Member Parrish noted that she sees it differently because Dundee is close to Newberg. 

 

CDD Rux noted several issues with including Dundee such as the need for the two City Council to meet and 

discuss, an Intergovernmental Agreement between the two cities, legal counsel review of documents, etc. 

 

Ted Crawford noted his desire for three seats on the Board for a contribution of $35,000 of TLT funds which is 

50% their annual TLT revenue. He talked to the Dundee City Council and they are supportive. 

 

Chair Lewis noted a joint effort would take time to put together. 

 

Ted Crawford noted they could contract with the new tourism organization. 

 

Member Buckmaster if you could have Dundee under contract and have the tourism organization do business as 

Newberg-Dundee. 

 

Member Felton noted he originally initiated the Newberg-Dundee topic. He believes in moving forward with 

Visit Newberg and contracting with Dundee. 

 

Ted Crawford indicated one seat on the Board will not be enough to influence the new organization. 

 

Member Parrish recapped the Chehalem Cultural Center Board members. 

 

Ted Crawford noted the bylaws could be and should be crafted for flexibility to include Dundee. 

 

Member Parrish suggested ease and transition. 

 

Chair Lewis noted he did not think there would be a problem in including Dundee in the future. 

 

Ted Crawford indicated it would go a long ways if Dundee could be involved in drafting the bylaws. 

 

Tourism Organization Board 

 

Chair Lewis set the stage for the discussion on organizations/entities and people to be on the new Board of 

Directors. 

 

Member Card asked if Board members need to live in the city limits. 

 

Chair Lewis noted it is important to pick the correct people. 

 

Member Griffin suggested starting with a base of the existing TLT Committee. 

 

Chair Lewis asked who on the TLT Committee would be interested on being on the new organization Board. 

This interested were Parrish, Carda, Buckmaster, Louis (or Allison Inn representative), Nicholas, Felton, 

Griffin, Yarnell-Hollamon, Bagley, Lewis.  Those not interested were Lattimer, Lippard, and Love. 

 

Member Parrish asked about other people on the Board such as Christian DeBenedetti (Wolves & People) and 

Cathy Martin from Dundee (Argyle) who is a marketing person. 

Page 5 of 49 



 

 

 

 

 

 
City of Newberg: TLT Ad Committee Meeting November 7, 2018  Page 5 of 6 

 

Member Lattimer suggested Cliff Anderson. 

 

Member Buckmaster suggested Rebecca Ponzi. 

 

Vice Chair Nicolas suggested Paul Bachand. 

 

Member Griffin suggested an attorney and someone from the faith based community. 

 

Member Buckmaster asked about how you address Chehalem Park & Recreation District, Chehalem Cultural 

Center and Newberg Downtown Coalition. 

 

Chair Lewis suggested Chehalem Park & Recreation District, Chehalem Cultural Center and Newberg 

Downtown Coalition as Ex Officio members. 

 

Member Buckmaster suggested Emily Weichold. 

 

Chair Lewis suggested Doug Peterson. 

 

Member Lattimer suggested Andrew Heinschn. 

 

Member Griffin suggested Hub Marduck. 

 

Member Parrish suggested someone with a history perspective. 

 

Member Buckmaster suggested Britta Stewart and Mark Moisan. 

 

Member Felton suggested Jennifer Sitter. 

 

Chair Lewis asked that TLT members have conversations with the people they have identified to see if they are 

interested. He inquired if here are there talking points all of the TLT members should use. 

 

WAKE UP IN WINE COUNTRY 

 

Member Felton indicated the Travel Oregon grant was not approved. The funds the City Council authorized 

could not be used for the Willamette Valley Visitor Association grant opportunity. Will have to wait until spring 

2019 for the next Travel Oregon grant opportunity. 

 

STATUS OF DESTINATION DEVELOPMENT-MARKETING GRANTS FY 17/18 

 

CDD Rux shared that the Cultural Center grant award is at the Cultural Center for review and working on the 

dates that they grant will start and end. The Newberg Downtown Wineries Association has a progress report in 

the packet. He is working on the next grant distribution. Wolves & People grant is on hold and was informed by 

Yamhill County that the trial will require a Conditional Use application. 

 

STATUS OF SMALL GRANTS FY 17/18 

CDD Rux noted the Final Report is included in the packet for the Hoover-Minthorn House Museum Marketing 

Plan and Exhibit. 

Page 6 of 49 



 

 

 

 

 

 
City of Newberg: TLT Ad Committee Meeting November 7, 2018  Page 6 of 6 

 

TLT MEMBER UPDATES 

 

Member Buckmaster shared that the Camellia Festival is looking for funding. Last year the Chamber provided 

$4,000 from their allocation of TLT funds and the festival was awarded $8,000 by the City Council through the 

TLT grant program. They were not aware there were no grants available this year. They are asking for $14,000 

for the 2019 festival. The Chamber is not funding out of the $40,000 they have for marketing in this year’s 

contract with the City as those funds will be going back to the new tourism organization. Have been looking for 

other grant opportunities. 

 

Vice Chair Nicholas noted that Friday the 13th is Chamber’s after hours. 

 

NEXT MEETING 

 

December 5, 2018 4:00 pm 

 

ADJOURNMENT  

 

Meeting adjourned at 5:37 pm 

 

Approved by the Newberg Transient Lodging Tax Ad-Hoc Committee this December 5, 2018. 

 

 

_____________________________________  _____________________________________ 

Dennis Lewis, TLT Ad-Hoc Committee Chair             Doug Rux, Community Development Director 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7 of 49 



Page 8 of 49 



Page 9 of 49 



Page 10 of 49 



Page 11 of 49 



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 12 of 49 



Page 13 of 49 



Page 14 of 49 



Page 15 of 49 



Page 16 of 49 



Page 17 of 49 



Page 18 of 49 



Page 19 of 49 



Page 20 of 49 



Page 21 of 49 



Page 22 of 49 



Page 23 of 49 



Page 24 of 49 



 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 201X-XXXX PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: Month, Date, Year 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 

No. No.  No.  

SUBJECT: A Resolution entering into an agreement 

with Visit Newberg for tourism marketing and 

promotion activities   

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Motion: Doug Rux, Director 

Dept.: Community Development 

File No.:  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT (RELATE TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES FROM SEPTEMBER 2017):   

 

 

Page 25 of 49 



 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 201X-XXXX PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 201x-xxxx 

 

 

A RESOLUTION ENTERING INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH VISIT 

NEWBERG FOR TOURISM MARKETING AND PROMOTION ACTIVITIES   
 

 

RECITALS: 

 

1. The City of Newberg established a Transient Lodging Tax in 1976 by Ordinance No. 1976-1835A 

and as amended by Ordinance No. 1989-2262, 1996-2433, 1997-2476, and 2014-2771. 

 

2. The Transient Lodging Tax Ad Hoc Committee was established on December 5, 2016. 

 

3. After extensive strategic planning the Transient Lodging Tax Ad Hoc Committee recommended 

to the City Council that the future use of tourism related funds should be the establishment of a 

destination marketing organization (DMO). 

 

4. The DMO will become a viable non-profit organization as of ______ and will be known as Visit 

Newberg. 

 

5. The City desires to contract with Visit Newberg to provide both tourism marketing and 

promotion activities and administrative and management functions. 

 

 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. Entry into the attached agreement (Exhibit A) with Visit Newberg is in the best interest of the City 

for tourism marketing and promotion activities. 

 

2. The City Manager is authorized to sign the agreement. 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: ________, 201x. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this         day of               , 201x. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

 

ATTEST by the Mayor this                day of              , 201x. 

 

 

____________________ 

Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 

Page 26 of 49 



  Draft 11/28/18 

1 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
 

CITY OF NEWBERG, OREGON 
AND 

VISIT NEWBERG 
 

FOR TOURISM PROMOTION SERVICES 
 
This Agreement is between the City of Newberg, an Oregon municipal corporation, 
(City) and Visit Newberg, Inc. (Contractor), an Oregon nonprofit corporation. The City 
wishes to enter into this Agreement with the Contractor for tourism promotion services 
for the City. The Contractor is willing to provide the tourism promotion services the City 
desires. The City will compensate the Contractor with a portion of the Transient Lodging 
Taxes the City assesses pursuant to Oregon State law and Ordinance No.1976-1835A 
and as amended by Ordinance No. 1989-2262, 1996-2433, 1997-2476, and 2014-2771 
____. 
 

1. Definitions: 
 

a. “tourism promotion” means any of the following activities: 

i)  advertising, publicizing, or distributing information for the purpose of 
attracting and welcoming tourists, 

ii)  conducting strategic planning and research necessary to stimulate 
future tourism development, 

iii)  operating tourism promotion agencies, and 
iv)  marketing special events and festivals designed to attract tourists (ORS 

320.300(7)). 
 

b. “tourism” means economic activity resulting from tourists (ORS 20.300(6)). 

c. “tourist” means a person who, for business, pleasure, recreation, or 
participation in events related to the arts, heritage, or culture, travels from 
the community in which that person is a resident to a different community 
that is separate, distinct from, and unrelated to the person’s community of 
residence, and that trip: 

 
i)  requires the person to travel more than 50 miles from the community 

of residence, or 
ii) includes an overnight stay (ORS 320.300(10)). 

d. “tourism promotion agency” includes: 
 

i)  an incorporated non-profit organization or governmental unit that is 
responsible for the tourism promotion of a destination on a year-round 
basis, 

Page 27 of 49 



  Draft 11/28/18 

2 
 

ii) a non-profit entity that manages tourism-related economic 
development plans, programs, and projects, and 

iii) a regional or statewide association that represents entities that rely on 
tourism-related business for more than 50 percent of their total 
income (ORS 320.300(8)). 

 
2. Contractor’s Services: 

 
In exchange for the payment provided in Section 6, the Contractor will provide 
the following tourism promotion services to the City:  
 
a. Tourism promotion activities: The Contractor will provide functions, activities, 

programs, literature (develop, arrange for printing, and distribute), advertising, 
staff, supplies, equipment, and support to promote the Newberg area as a 
destination for tourists and visitors. The Contractor will coordinate its activities, 
as appropriate, with other organizations such as the Chehalem Valley 
Chamber of Commerce and the Newberg Downtown Coalition and other visitor 
promotion entities. 

 
b. Administrative and management functions: The Contractor will provide day to-

day management activities including planning and acquisition of services, 
equipment, supplies, and facilities to fulfill the Annual Business and Marketing 
Plan (the Business Plan) for Visit Newberg. The Contractor will be responsible 
for maintaining capable and competent staff, including management staff. The 
Contractor’s Executive Director or designee will attend any City Council 
meetings as requested by the City Council to provide updates, information, or 
other data on Visit Newberg plans and services. 

 
3. First Year of the Agreement: 

 
a. Once the Agreement is fully executed and before it is funded, the City may 

make payments on behalf of Visit Newberg for various charges (e.g. insurance 
premiums, advertising costs for the Executive Director). These payments will 
be deducted from the funding the City will provide Visit Newberg when the 
certificates of insurance are approved by the City. 

 
b. Once the Agreement is fully executed and acceptable certificates of insurance 

have been provided to the City, the City will provide Visit Newberg with funding 
in the amount of 35.06____% of the Transient Lodging Taxes accrued and 
unexpended since the inception of the Transient Lodging Tax, minus the City’s 
annual expenditures to the Chehalem Valley Chamber of Commerce for the 
Visitor Center contract, and funds committed from the Transient Lodging Tax 
Destination Development-Marketing Grant program grant awards. the City’s 
monthly administrative charges. 

 
c. No later than February 15________, 2019: 

Page 28 of 49 



  Draft 11/28/18 

3 
 

 
i)  The Contractor will establish an initial high-level budget to enable the 

Contractor’s Board to make informed decisions regarding staff, 
contract vendors, leases, and other issues and 

 
ii) The Contractor will adopt financial policies and procedures. 

 
d. No later than March 31June, 2019, the Contractor will hire an Executive 

Director. 
 

e. No later than February 28July, 2019, the Contractor will prepare and submit a 
Business and Marketing Plan (the Business Plan) to the City Council. The 
Business Plan will contain a detailed description of the services the Contractor 
proposes to provide during the remainder of the fiscal year, as well as a 
proposed budget for the remainder of the fiscal year.  

 
The Plan will identify activities and performance goals. The Contractor will be 
fully responsible for the implementation of services and programs and the City 
will not control the day-to-day activities and operations of Visit Newberg and its 
employees and agents. However, the City may provide general suggestions 
regarding the funding of various services or programs, which the Contractor 
will consider in the use of City funds.  

 
The Contractor’s proposed 2018-2019 budget will be prepared assuming a 
total budget for services provided under this Agreement of the amount of 
accrued and unexpended Transient Lodging Tax collections from previous 
years paid to Visit Newberg under the provisions of 3.b. above, plus 35.06% 
_____% of projected Transient Lodging Tax collections for the current year, 
minus the City’s annual expenditures to the Chehalem Valley Chamber of 
Commerce for the Visitor Center contract, and funds committed from the 
Transient Lodging Tax Destination Development-Marketing Grant program 
grant awards.the City’s monthly administrative charges for the current year. 
The budget will contain a reserve fund in an amount equal to at least three 
months of total operating expenses. 

 
f. The City Council will consider the Business Plan during a Council meeting in 

the month of March 2019______ (no later than July) , after which, the Council 
will determine whether to approve the Plan. If the Council approves the 
Business Plan, the Council will authorize continued funding for the remainder 
of the fiscal year. The Contractor will expend funds received from the City 
under this Agreement only as set out in and authorized by the Business Plan. 
If the Council does not approve the Business Plan and the parties cannot 
reach agreement on modification, this Agreement will terminate in the same 
manner as if the Contractor had defaulted or breached the Agreement, 
pursuant to Article 13. 

 

Page 29 of 49 



  Draft 11/28/18 

4 
 

g. No later than June 1_____, 2019, the Contractor will prepare and submit to the 
City Council a written progress report on the Business Plan, including the 
budget. The City Council may request that a representative of the Contractor 
attend a City Council meeting to provide further information and to answer any 
questions. 

 
4. Annual Business and Marketing Plan: 

 
a. Beginning with the 2019-2020 fiscal year, the Contractor will prepare and 

submit a Business Plan to the City Council no later than March 1 three weeks 
before the first Council meeting of May each year. The Business Plan will 
contain a review of the previous year’s performance and a detailed description 
of the services the Contractor proposes to provide in the next fiscal year, as 
well as a proposed budget for the next fiscal year. The Business Plan will 
identify activities and performance goals. Additionally, the Business Plan will 
contain a detailed explanation of any amendments the Contractor has made to 
the Contractor’s bylaws. The Contractor will be fully responsible for the 
implementation of services and programs and the City will not control the day 
to-day activities and operations of Visit Newberg and its employees and 
agents. However, the City may provide general suggestions regarding the 
funding of various services or programs, which the Contractor will consider in 
the use of City funds. 

 
b. The City Council will consider the Business Plan during a Council meeting in 

the month of May each year, after which, the Council will determine whether to 
approve the Plan. If the Council approves the Business Plan, the Council will 
authorize continued funding of Visit Newberg for the next fiscal year. The 
Contractor will expend funds received from the City under this Agreement only 
as set out in and authorized by the Business Plan. If the Council does not 
approve the Business Plan and the parties cannot reach agreement on 
modifications, this Agreement will terminate in the same manner as if the 
Contractor had defaulted or breached the Agreement, pursuant to Article 13. 

 
c. The Contractor’s proposed budget will be prepared assuming a total budget for 

services provided under this Agreement of 35.06_____% of projected 
Transient Lodging Tax collections for the current year, minus the City’s annual 
expenditures to the Chehalem Valley Chamber of Commerce for the Visitor 
Center contract, and funds committed from the Transient Lodging Tax 
Destination Development-Marketing Grant program grant awards. the City’s 
monthly administrative charges for the current year. 

 
The Contractor’s annual budget will contain a reserve fund in an amount equal 
to at least three months of total operating expenses as defined by the 
Contractor’s adopted fiscal policies. The reserve fund may be used in the case 
of actual revenues being less than forecast and in support of activities included 
in the approved Business Plan. In no case will expenditures exceed actual 

Page 30 of 49 



  Draft 11/28/18 

5 
 

funds payable under this Agreement. However, nothing in this section 
precludes the Contractor using funds secured from sources other than the City 
in the Contractors’ complete and total discretion. 

 
5. Other Reports: 

 
a. The Contractor will prepare and submit to the City Council three written 

progress reports each year (in August, November, and February) on the 
Business Plan, including the budget. These reports will also contain notice of 
any amendments the Contractor has made to the Contractor’s bylaws. The 
City Council may request that a representative of the Contractor attend a City 
Council meeting to provide further information and to answer any questions. 

 
b. If the City’s actual collection of Transient Lodging Tax revenues exceeds the 

amount approved in the Contractor’s budget by 20% or more, before the City 
will provide additional funds to the Contractor, the Contractor will submit a 
revised Business Plan to the City, describing how the additional funds will be 
spent on tourism promotion activities. 

 
6. Funding: 

 
The City agrees to compensate the Contractor from Transient Lodging Tax 
revenues collected by the City. The compensation will be for services provided 
under this Agreement. The amount paid quarterly (in August, November, 
February, and May) to the Contractor will be based on 35.06_____% of the 
Transient Lodging Tax collected by the City in the preceding quarter minus the 
City’s annual expenditures to the Chehalem Valley Chamber of Commerce for 
the Visitor Center contract, and funds committed from the Transient Lodging Tax 
Destination Development-Marketing Grant program grant awards.. This amount 
is subject to the following: 

 
a. The provisions of Section 5.b above, and 

 
b. Administrative charges by the City. 

 
7. Administrative Costs: The Contractor’s administrative and management costs, 

including but not limited to personnel, rent, financial management services, 
internal budgeting and accounting, purchasing, insurance, maintenance, 
supervision, legal services, printing, and any other costs will be at the cost and 
discretion of the Contractor. 

 
8. Assets: The Contractor is an independent entity and will be responsible for 

acquiring and maintaining real and personal property related to the provision of 
services under this Agreement. The Contractor will own all real and personal 
property acquired by it. On termination of this Agreement, the Contractor will 

Page 31 of 49 



  Draft 11/28/18 

6 
 

transfer any intellectual property or promotional materials associated with the 
provision of services under this Agreement to the City at no cost. 

 
9. Risk of Loss and Insurance: The Contractor bears the risk of loss of all its 

property (as described in Section 8). The Contractor, at its own expense, will 
procure and maintain general liability insurance to protect the Contractor from 
claims that may arise out of or result from the services provided under this 
Agreement. Prior to funding of this Agreement, the Contractor will provide 
proof that it has acquired this insurance. The insurance will be in an amount 
per occurrence at least equal to the City’s tort claims liability limits under the 
Oregon Tort Claims Act with a $3,000,000 aggregate. The policy will name the 
City, its officers, agents, and employees as additional insureds. 

 
The Contractor and any of its subcontractors will maintain in full force and 
effect Worker’s Compensation insurance and Employer Liability insurance in 
compliance with Oregon State law. 

 
The Contractor will be responsible for all deductibles, self-insurance 
retentions, and self-insurance for the insurance required under this section. 
The Contractor will notify the City thirty days prior to any material change in 
the Contractor’s insurance, or, if that is not possible, immediately upon the 
Contractor receiving notice of a change. 

 
10. Annual Review/Audit: The financial books of Visit Newberg will be audited or 

reviewed annually by an independent certified public accountant. The 
accountant will make a written report of the review/audit to the Board of 
Directors which will then submit a copy of the report to the Newberg City 
Council. The audit or review will be completed as soon as practical after the 
close of the fiscal year. 

 
11. Records and Accounting: The Contractor will maintain records and accounts 

that will allow the City to assure that all funds paid for the performance of this 
Agreement are properly accounted for. Within 72 hours of a written request 
by the City, the Contractor will make records relating to income and 
expenditures available for review and audit by the City. The City will have the 
right during the term of this Agreement, or within 180 days after the 
expiration or termination of this Agreement, to audit the Contractor’s records 
for the period of three years prior to the audit. The audit may be undertaken 
by a qualified person or entity selected by the City. The Contractor agrees 
that it will provide financial records from its accountants to the City every 
month. These records will include, at minimum, a balance sheet and income 
and expense reports. The Contractor will maintain these financial records for 
at least six years after the expiration of this Agreement. 

 
12. Term: This Agreement will be in effect _____, 2019. It will remain in effect for 

three years unless terminated earlier under the provisions of Section 3.f 

Page 32 of 49 



  Draft 11/28/18 

7 
 

(Council fails to approve the Business Plan), Section 4.b (Council fails to 
approve the Business Plan), Section 13 (default or material breach) or 
Section 21 (assignment without approval). At the end of the three year term, 
the Agreement will automatically renew for three one year periods unless 
either party wishes at any time not to extend the Agreement. If a party 
wishes not to extend the Agreement, that party will notify the other party that 
the Agreement will terminate at the end of the current Agreement period. 
Notification will be in writing and will be delivered no later than January 1 of 
the year in which the notifying party wishes the Agreement to terminate. 

 
13. Default and Breach: Either party may terminate this Agreement in the event 

of a default or material breach by the other party. The notifying party must 
provide written notice to the other party specifying how the other party is not 
in compliance with the terms of this Agreement. The non-complying party will 
have thirty days after receipt of a notice of non-compliance to cure the 
issue(s). Should the correction(s) not be made during this thirty day period, 
this Agreement may be terminated, at the discretion of the notifying party, 
unless the correction(s) cannot be made within thirty days. If the non-
compliance cannot be corrected within thirty days, the non-complying party 
must, at minimum, begin corrective action within thirty days and proceed with 
due diligence until the correction is completed. This Agreement may be 
terminated, at the discretion of the notifying party, if the non-complying party 
either fails to begin to take corrective action within thirty days or fails or 
ceases to use due diligence to continue with the corrective action. 

 
14. Equal Opportunity: The Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against 

any employee or applicant for employment on the basis of race, age, color, 
sex, religion, ancestry, national origin, sexual orientation, gender identity, 
genetic information, or disability and will take any affirmative action 
necessary to ensure that all employees and applicants are treated equally. 
The Contractor and its employees will not, in the performance of this 
Agreement, discriminate against any customer, potential customer, patron, 
or other person on the bases listed above in this section and will provide 
services to all persons equally.  

 
15. Contractor Indemnification: The Contractor will defend, protect, indemnify, 

and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents, and employees from and 
against any and all claims, losses, damages, injuries, or liability including 
claims for misapplication of contributions or other funds, state or federal anti-
trust violations, personal injury or death, damage to property, liability arising 
out of the use of materials, concepts, or processes protected by intellectual 
property rights, and the liens of workmen and material men, regardless how 
these were caused, if they arose directly or indirectly from the performance 
of this Agreement by the Contractor, unless caused by the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the City. The Contractor is not an officer, employee, or 
agent of the City under ORS 30.285 or 30.287. 

Page 33 of 49 



  Draft 11/28/18 

8 
 

 
16. Licenses and Taxes: The Contractor will be responsible for the acquisition 

and maintenance of all licenses and permits to carry on the Contractor’s 
business. 

 
17. Independent Contractor: The Contractor is an independent contractor. The 

parties intend that an independent contractor relationship will be created by 
this Agreement. The City is interested only in the results to be achieved. 
Conduct and control of the work will be the responsibility of the Contractor. 
The Contractor will not be considered an agent or employee of the City for 
any purpose, and the employees of the Contractor are neither employees of 
the City nor are they entitled to any of the benefits that the City provides for 
its employees. 

 
18. No Third Party Beneficiaries: The City and the Contractor are the only parties 

to this Agreement and are the only parties entitled to enforce its terms. 
Nothing in this Agreement gives, is intended to give, or will be construed to 
give or provide any benefit or right, whether directly, indirectly, or otherwise, 
to third persons unless the third persons are identified by name in this 
Agreement and expressly described as intended beneficiaries of the terms of 
this Agreement. 

 
19. Authority: As specified in Section 17, the Contractor is an independent 

contractor in the performance of this Agreement. The Contractor will comply 
with all laws regarding unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and 
worker’s compensation. The Contractor will have no authorization, express 
or implied, to bind the City to any agreement, settlement, liability, or 
understanding, and agrees not to perform any acts as an agent of the City. 

 
20. Notice: Any notice or notices provided for in this Agreement or by law which 

must be given or served on either party will be given or served by personal 
service, certified mail (return receipt requested, postage prepaid), or by e-
mail or facsimile followed by certified mailing of the original, in a pre-
addressed, stamped envelope, addressed to: 

 
City of Newberg      Visit Newberg 
Joe Hannan      ________________ 

City Manager      
 Board 
ChairExecutive Director 

PO Box 970 
Newberg, OR 97132 

 
21. Assignment: Neither party may assign, subcontract, or otherwise transfer any 

rights and responsibilities under this Agreement except upon the written 
consent of the other party. If any assignment is made, both the assigning 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.31", Hanging:  3.19"

Page 34 of 49 



  Draft 11/28/18 

9 
 

party and the assignee will be bound by the terms of this Agreement. The 
City may terminate the Agreement if transferred or assigned without the prior 
written consent of the City. 

 
22. Amendments: This Agreement may be amended only by written agreement 

signed by both parties. 
 

23. Laws of Oregon: This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of 
Oregon, both as to the interpretation and performance, and the venue will be 
Yamhill County. 

 
24. Waiver: The City’s failure to enforce a provision of this Agreement will not 

constitute a continuing waiver, will not constitute a relinquishment of the 
City’s right to performance in the future, and will not operate as a waiver of 
the City’s right to enforce any other provision of this Agreement. 

 
25. Merger: This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 

parties. 
 

There are no understandings, agreements, or representations regarding this 
Agreement, whether oral or written, that are not specified in this Agreement. 

 
This contract is entered into by the City of Newberg and the initial Board of 
Directors of Visit Newberg, Inc., effective ______, 2019. 

 
CITY OF NEWBERG    VISIT NEWBERG, INC. 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
Joe Hannan, City Manager     XXXXX, Chair 

______________________________ 
XXX, Vice Chair 

______________________________ 
XXX, Treasurer-Secretary 

______________________________ 
XXXX, Director 

______________________________ 
XXXX, Director 

______________________________ 
XXXX, Director 

______________________________ 
XXXX, Director 

______________________________ 
XXXX, Director 
 

 XXXX, Director 
______________________________ 

XXXX, Director (City Councilor) 

Page 35 of 49 



  Draft 11/28/18 

10 
 

______________________________ 
XXXXX, Director (City staff) 

Page 36 of 49 



  Draft 11-28-18 

1 
 

BYLAWS 

VISIT NEWBERG 

 
Article 1. Name 

 
Section 1. Name.  This organization is incorporated under the state laws of Oregon 

as a 501(c)(6) non-membership organization and is known as Visit Newberg 

(hereinafter VN). 

 
Article II. 
Purpose 

 
Section 1. Purpose and Role. VN is an economic and tourism development 

organization with a primary function of creating an effective mix of marketing, sales, 

and service programs designed to produce a positive economic impact on visitor 

spending in the Newberg area. Developing and implementing these programs results 

in an enhancement of the areas City's livability and economic viability by, among other 

things, providing increased employment and economic opportunity. VN promotes the 

entire area City and works in partnership with all sectors of the visitor industry. VN 

practices the highest principles of civic citizenship and follows good business 

practices and policies. 

 
Article Ill. 
Contract 

 
Section 1. Contract. The City of Newberg (City) contemplates entering into a sole 

source procurement contract with VN based on VN's status as the sole non-profit 

provider of the programs enumerated above through the use of the City's transient 

lodging tax income. The initial contract term is three years; however, VN will provide 

an annual review of the past year as well as an annual business plan for the 

upcoming year, and the contract may be terminated early if the City does not 

approve the review or business plan. The initial three year term of the contract will 

automatically renew for three one year periods unless either party wishes at any time 

not to extend the contract. If a party wishes not to extend the contract, that party will 

notify the other party that the contract will terminate at the end of the current 

contract period. Notification will be in writing and will be delivered no later than 

January 1 of the year in which the notifying party wishes the contract to terminate. 

Should VN's sole source status cease, the City will award subsequent contracts on 

the basis of the requirements of the public contracting law for non-sole source 

contracts. 

 

Page 37 of 49 



  Draft 11-28-18 

2 
 

 

Article IV.  Board of Directors 

 
Section 1. General Powers and Responsibilities. The governance of VN is vested in a 

Board of Directors as further provided in these bylaws. The Board of Directors (also 

referred to as the Board) sets policy, establishes strategic direction, and fulfills legal and 

fiduciary responsibilities to VN. Members of the Board of Directors (also referred to as 

Directors, Board members, and members) serve without compensation but they may be 

reimbursed for expenses related to Board services. Voting members of the initial Board 

of Directors have been recommended appointed by the Newberg City Council by a 

majority vote. 

 
Section 2. Number and Terms of Directors. The Board of Directors consists of no 

fewer than seven and no more than nine voting members, including the Chair, Vice- 

Chair, Treasurer-Secretary, and four two members at large. The Board also 

includes two three non-voting members: the Executive Director, and one City 

Councilor. , and one City staff member. The Board may identify Ex Officio 

members. 

 
In order to stagger the terms of the Directors, approximately one third of the initial 

voting members of the Board of Directors will serve three year terms (a full term), 

approximately one third will serve two year terms, and approximately one third will 

serve one year terms. Subsequently, voting members of the Board will be elected to 

serve three year terms. Voting Board members will serve no more than three 

consecutive full terms. Voting Board members who have served three full terms may 

be re-elected reappointed to the Board after a hiatus of one year. 

 
If the City Councilor position is to be filled, it will be filled by appointment by the Mayor 

upon approval of a majority of the City Council. If the City staff member position is to 

be filled, it will be filled by appointment by the City Manager. Both the City Councilor 

and City staff member positions serve annual terms and serve until notice of 

replacement. 

 
Section 3. Selection of Directors. All Director positions to be filled after the 

appointment election of the initial Board of Directors and will be filled pursuant to 

this Section. 

 

3.1 Voting Directors: No later than January of each year, the Board Chair will 

appoint a Board member to serve as the Nominating Committee Chair. The 

Board Chair will also appoint one other Board member to serve on the 

Page 38 of 49 



  Draft 11-28-18 

3 
 

Nominating Committee, along with the Executive Director. Both appointments 

must be approved by a majority vote of the Board of Directors. The Nominating 

Committee will conduct interviews with candidates who are willing to accept 

voting Directorship responsibilities for upcoming vacancies on the Board. No 

later than March, the Nominating Committee will present a slate of candidates to 

the Board for approval through a majority vote of the Board. 

 
3.2 City Councilor and City staff member positions: These positions will be filled 

as specified in Article IV, Section 2, above. 

 
Section 4. Qualifications of Directors. Board members will be selected based on 

their willingness and availability to serve and the experience, knowledge, and energy 

they can bring to the Board. There is no residency requirement nor is there a 

requirement that any Director be connected with a company, business, or 

organization located in the area either Newberg or the 97140 zip code. 

 
The Board consists of a) two members at large, who may be, but do not need to be, 

tourism industry representatives, b) one City Councilor, c) one City staff person, d) 

the Executive Director, and e) five to seven tourism industry representatives. The 

tourism industry representatives need not be representatives of any specific tourism 

industries. At no time will a majority of the tourism industry representatives represent 

any one tourism industry (e.g. wine, food, or lodging). No more than one Director 

representing any given company, business, or organization will be allowed to serve 

at one time. 

 
Section 5. Vacancies. If vacancies reduce the number of voting Directors to less than 

seven, and if more than sixty days remain in the term of the Director or Directors 

whose leaving has/have caused the number of voting Directors to fall below seven, the 

Chair will propose one candidate for each voting Director position which is to be filled 

and the Board will vote on that/those candidate(s). The election of the candidate(s) will 

be by a majority vote of the Board. 

 
In all other cases, VN is not required to fill voting Director positions which are vacated 

mid-term. However, if such a voting Director position becomes vacant mid-term, the 

Chair will, within sixty days of the vacation, make a recommendation to the Board as to 

whether to fill the position. If the recommendation is to fill the position, the Chair will 

propose a candidate to complete the term. The election of the candidate will be by a 

majority vote of the Board. 

 
A voting Director elected to fill a vacancy under this section will serve until the 

expiration of the term of the position to which the Director was elected. 

Page 39 of 49 



  Draft 11-28-18 

4 
 

 
A City Councilor or City staff person may be appointed to fill a vacancy in a City 

Councilor or City staff person position as specified in Article IV, Section 2. The 

appointee will serve until the expiration of the term of the position to which the City 

Councilor or City staff person was appointed. 

 

Section 6. Removal or Resignation of Directors. If any Director misses more than 

two meetings in a row or more than three meetings during the fiscal year, the 

Director's resignation will be deemed to have been tendered and accepted. The other 

Directors, by majority vote, may make an exception for good cause shown. 

 
Any Director may be removed by a majority vote of the Board of Directors for failure 

to fulfill the duties required of Directors, or intentional acts or omissions which a 

prudent person could reasonably have foreseen would damage the reputation or 

interests of VN. Removal will be based on a finding of the Board that the best 

interests of VN will be served by this action. The City Councilor may be removed at 

any time by the Mayor with approval of a majority of the City Council. The City staff 

person may be removed at any time by the City Manager. 

 
Any Director may resign at any time by providing thirty days written notice to the 

Executive Director or the Chair. 

 
In all cases of removal or resignation under this section, vacancies will be filled or left 

vacant under the specifications of Article IV, Section 5. 

 
Section 7. Meetings. The Board of Directors meets no less than once every 

quarter, at a time and location determined by the Chair. All meetings will be held in 

accordance with State and Federal laws for 501(c)(6) organizations Oregon Public 

Meetings and Records Law. The Chair or Executive Director may cancel or 

reschedule meetings. The Chair or Executive Director may call special meetings of 

the Board of Directors at any time. 

 
Regularly scheduled Board meetings may be held without separate notice if the 

location, date, and time are fixed by resolution or all Directors were originally notified 

of the schedule. Special meetings of the Board and any regular meetings of the 

Board which are not pre-scheduled as specified above must be noticed to each 

Director no less than two days and no more than thirty days in advance of the 

meeting. 

 
Decisions of a routine nature may be made by the Chair and Executive Director. These 

decisions, if outside the governance policies established by the Board, must be ratified 

Page 40 of 49 



  Draft 11-28-18 

5 
 

by majority vote at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting. 

 
Section 8. Quorum. A quorum consists of a simple majority of the voting Board 

members in good standing immediately before the meeting begins. A quorum must 

be present at Board of Directors' meetings in order for the Board to take action. A 

majority vote consists of a simple majority of the quorum of voting Board members in 

attendance at any given meeting. 

 

Section 9. Voting. With the exception of the Executive Director, and the City 

Councilor, and the City staff member, each member of the Board of Directors has one 

vote. Proxy voting is not allowed, either at a meeting of the Board of Directors or in 

any other way connected with the Board reaching a decision. Directors unable to 

attend a meeting of the Board may send a letter, e-mail, or other written 

communication to the Board stating his/her opinion or position on any matter before 

the Board.  A copy of the communication will be distributed to each Board member 

present, and, if the absent Board member so requests, the communication will be 

read aloud at the meeting during the discussion of the issue. Any Board member may 

attend a meeting via telephone, conference call, or video conferencing provided that 

the attendance allows all participants to speak and to be heard by all other 

participants. , subject to the Oregon Public Meetings Law. 

 

Voting will be allowed if attending a meeting in person, or by means of telephone or 

video conference that meets the above rule. Additionally, the Board my vote on 

matters by electronic means, including, but not limited to email or other software or 

applications that allows for distribution to all of the Board Members simultaneously 

and will be capable of being maintained as a permanent record of the decision. 

 

 
Section 10. Conflicts of Interest. When a Board member has an actual or 

potential conflict of interest in a transaction with VN, the material facts of the 

transaction and the Board member's interest will be disclosed to the Board of 

Directors at each meeting prior to any vote taking place. The conflict will be recorded 

in the minutes of the meeting. Conflicts of interest are regulated by ORS Chapter 

244. The existence of an actual conflict of interest disqualifies a Board member from 

participating in both the discussion and the vote on the issue. A Board member with a 

potential conflict of interest may participate in the discussion and vote on the matter 

after declaring the conflict as discussed above. Each Board member will sign a 

conflict of interest statement annually. 

 
Section 11. Officers, Duties. There are three officers of the Board: Chair, Vice-

Chair, and Treasurer-Secretary. All officers must be voting members of the Board of 

Page 41 of 49 



  Draft 11-28-18 

6 
 

Directors. 

 
11.1 Chair: The Chair presides at meetings of the Board of Directors, assures 

that the Board of Directors is advised on all significant matters of business, and 

provides guidance in the development of overall VN long-term objectives. The Chair 

may also perform other duties as prescribed by the Board of Directors. 

 
Although the Chair may vote on any issue before the Board, s/he may remain neutral 

on issues before the Board unless his/her vote is needed to break a tie. 

 
The Chair and the Executive Director serve as the official spokespersons for VN. 

The roles of Executive Director and Chair are complementary, with the Executive 

Director seeing to the operation of VN and the achievement of the desired results, 

and with the Chair seeing to the health of the Board and the achievement of Board 

responsibilities. 

 
The Chair and the Executive Director may sign deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or 

other instruments, which the Board of Directors has authorized to be executed. A 

minimum of two signatures is necessary for such legal documents, except in cases 

where the signing is expressly delegated to some other agent by the Board of Directors 

or statute. 

 
The Chair, along with the Vice-Chair and the Treasurer-Secretary, conducts an 

annual performance evaluation of the Executive Director and provides a written 

report of the review, along with a recommendation for any action, to the Board of 

Directors. Insofar as possible, reviews will be confidential. 

 
11.2 Vice-Chair: The Vice-Chair serves as the first assistant to the Chair, 

performing the duties of the Chair in the Chair's absence. The Vice-Chair succeeds 

the Chair in the event of a mid-term vacancy in the position of Chair. 

 
11.3 Treasurer-Secretary: The Treasurer-Secretary oversees financial 

reports, which describe the financial condition of VN and serves as liaison between 

the contracted financial management services provider and the Board. The 

Treasurer- Secretary succeeds as Vice-Chair in the event the Vice-Chair position 

becomes vacant mid-term and s/he succeeds as Chair in the event that both the Chair 

and Vice-Chair positions become vacant mid-term. 

 
11.4 Secretary: The duties ordinarily performed by a Corporate Secretary 

are performed by the Executive Director and his/her staff. 

 

Page 42 of 49 



  Draft 11-28-18 

7 
 

Section 12. Election of Officers. The current voting Directors nominate voting Directors 

for the positions of Chair, Vice-Chair, and Treasurer-Secretary at the first meeting of each 

calendar year. The election of each officer is by a majority vote of the Directors. The 

election of the officers is conducted either at the first meeting of the calendar year or as 

soon as possible thereafter. Officers' terms are one calendar year, but officers remain in 

their offices until a new election has been held. Officers may be re-elected to the same 

position for subsequent years, as long as the officer is a member in good standing of the 

Board of Directors. If an officer position becomes vacant during a term, the rules of 

succession in Section 11 above apply. To fill any vacancy after applying the rules of 

succession, the Board of Directors nominates a member to serve out the term of that 

position. This interim officer must be approved by a majority vote of the Directors. 

 

Article V. Executive Director 

 
Section 1. Executive Director. The Board employs an Executive Director who is 

charged with the general supervision and management of the office and business affairs 

of VN. The Executive Director reports directly to the Board. The Board sets the 

Executive Director's salary. The Executive Director is charged with proposing to the 

Board and, upon approval by the Board, implementing an annual marketing plan and 

budget. The Executive Director has the authority for supervision of all employees, 

including all personnel actions and employee compensation within the annual budget as 

approved by the Board. The Executive Director serves as the Corporate Secretary, keeps 

all necessary records, and in general manages the affairs of VN to promote the 

objectives for which it was organized. In the absence of the Executive Director, all duties 

will be performed by a member of the staff appointed for that purpose. The Executive 

Director is a non-voting member of the Board of Directors, is a member of all Board 

committees, and carries out other duties as assigned by the Board, its officers, and 

committees. The Executive Director executes (with the Chair) and oversees all contracts, 

mortgages, deeds, bonds, or other instruments in accordance with action plans and 

expenditures budgeted and approved by the Board of Directors. 

 
The Executive Director and the Chair of the Board are the official spokespersons for 

VN. The roles of Executive Director and Chair are complementary, with the Executive 

Director seeing to the operation of VN and the achievement of the desired results, and 

with the Chair seeing to the health of the Board and the achievement of Board 

responsibilities. 

 
The Executive Director is accountable to the full Board, not to individual Board members 

or committees. This does not prevent full interaction between the Executive Director and 

Board members and committees. The actions of the Executive Director must be in 

harmony with the wishes of the Board as a whole. A dispute between a Board member 

Page 43 of 49 



  Draft 11-28-18 

8 
 

or a committee and the Executive Director will be arbitrated by the full Board and, where 

necessary, a majority Board vote will determine the outcome. 

 
Article VI. Finances 

 
Section 1. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of VN commences on the first day of July and 

ends on the last day of June each year. 

 
Section 2. Special Fund. No organized effort to raise funds for VN will be undertaken 

unless authorized by the Board. 
 

Section 3. Annual Budget. The Executive Director prepares and submits an annual 

budget for the coming fiscal year to the Board of Directors for review no later than 

February 1 May 1 each year. The Board of Directors adopts a final budget by majority 

vote no later than February 28 June 30 each year. 

 
Section 4. Disbursements. All disbursements must adhere to the financial policies 

and procedures approved by the Board of Directors by majority vote. No obligations 

or expenses will be incurred and no monies will be appropriated for unbudgeted 

items without prior approval of the Board of Directors by majority vote. Upon approval 

of the annual operating budget, the Executive Director is authorized to make 

disbursements on accounts and expenses provided for in the budget without 

additional approval of the Board of Directors. All disbursements except petty cash will 

be made by check or electronic funds transfer. 

 
Section 5. Annual Review/Audit. The financial books of VN will be audited or 

reviewed annually by an independent certified public accountant. The accountant will 

make a written report of the review/audit to the Board of Directors which will then 

submit a copy of the report to the Newberg City Council. The audit or review will be 

completed as soon as practical after the close of the fiscal year. 

 

Article VII.  Amendments 

 
Section 1. Amendments. All proposed amendments or changes to these bylaws will 

be made by the Board of Directors and will be approved by a seventy-five percent 

(75%) majority vote of the voting Directors in good standing who are then in office. 

Prior to the adoption of the amendment, each Director will be given at least forty eight 

hours’ notice of the date, time, and place of the meeting at which the proposed 

amendment is to be considered. 

The notice will state that the purpose or one of the purposes of the meeting is to 

consider a proposed amendment to the bylaws and it will contain a copy of the 

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0", Right:  0.27"

Page 44 of 49 



  Draft 11-28-18 

9 
 

proposed amendment. 

 
Article VIII. 

Indemnification 

 
Section 1. Indemnification. VN will indemnify any person who was or is a party, or is 

threatened with being made a party, to any threatened or pending action or suit by 

reason of the fact that s/he is or was a director, officer, employee, or agent of VN, for 

expenses (including attorney's fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him/her in 

connection with the defense or settlement of the action or suit, provided s/he acted in 

good faith and in a manner s/he reasonably believed to be in, or at least not opposed to, 

the best interests of VN. No indemnification will be given to any person who has been 

adjudged to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of his/her duty to 

VN unless and only to the extent that the court in which the action or suit was brought 

determines that, despite the adjudication of liability, and in view of all circumstance of 

the case, the person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for expenses which 

the court deems proper. 

 
Section 2. Insurance. VN will, at all times, carry all appropriate directors and officers 

and liability insurance. 

 
Proposed Article IX. Purpose/Dissolution Clause 

 
Visit Newberg is a destination marketing organization working exclusively for the 

Economic Development of the City of Newberg. 

 
Upon the dissolution of the organization, assets shall be distributed for one or more 

exempt purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(6) of the Internal Revenue Code, 

or corresponding section of any future federal tax code, or shall be distributed to the 

federal government, or to a state or local government, for a public purpose. Any such 

assets not disposed of shall be disposed of by a court of competent jurisdiction in the 

county in which the principal office of the organization is located, exclusively for such 

purposes or to such organization or organizations, as said Court shall determine, which 

are organized and operated exclusively for such purposes. 

 

 
These bylaws are approved this  day of  , 2019, by the initial 
Board of Directors of Visit Newberg. 

 
 
 

 

Page 45 of 49 



  Draft 11-28-18 

10 
 

_________, TreasurerChair ___________, Director 
 
 
 
 

 

________, Vice Chair ___________, Director 
 

 

 

 

 

____________, Treasurer-Secretary __________, Director 

 
 
 

 
  

___________, Director _____________, Director (City Councilor) 
 

 

 

 

 

_________________, Director ________________, Director (City staff) 
 

 

 

 

 
___________________, Director 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Space Before:  0.3 pt, Tab

stops: Not at  3.51"

Formatted: Space Before:  0.3 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Space Before:  0.3 pt, Tab

stops: Not at  3.51"

Formatted: Space Before:  0.3 pt

Formatted: Body Text, Indent: Left:  0", Space Before: 

0.3 pt, Line spacing:  single, Tab stops: Not at  3.49"

Formatted: Body Text, Indent: Left:  0", Space Before: 

0.3 pt, Tab stops: Not at  3.51"

Formatted: Space Before:  0.3 pt

Formatted: Body Text, Indent: Left:  0", Space Before: 

0.3 pt, Tab stops: Not at  3.51"

Formatted: Space Before:  0.3 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Space Before:  0.3 pt

Page 46 of 49 



 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 201X-XXXX PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: December 17, 2018 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution  __   Motion        Information ___ 

No. No.  No.  

SUBJECT: A Resolution recommending members to 

the initial Board of Directors of Visit Newberg 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Motion: Doug Rux, Director 

Dept.: Community Development 

File No.:  

RECOMMENDATION:  

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT (RELATE TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES FROM SEPTEMBER 2017):   

 

 

Page 47 of 49 



 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 201X-XXXX PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 201x-xxxx 

 

 

A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING MEMBERS TO THE INITIAL BOARD 

OF DIRECTORS OF VISIT NEWBERG 
 

 

RECITALS: 
 

1. The City of Newberg adopted a Transient Lodging Tax by Ordinance No. 1976-1835A and as 

amended by Ordinance No. 1989-2262, 1996-2433, 1997-2476, and 2014-2771. Pursuant to State 

law 35.06% of revenue from the tax must be dedicated to tourism promotion or tourism related 

facilities. 

 

2. The City is in the process of establishing a Destination Marketing Organization, which will be 

charged with creating an effective mix of marketing, sales, and service programs designed to 

produce positive economic impact on visitor spending in Newberg. This non-profit organization will 

be known as Visit Newberg. Visit Newberg will be incorporated effective _______, 2019. The City 

will contract with Visit Newberg for tourism promotion services. 

 

3. In order to create the initial Board of Directors, the City Council will, by this Resolution, 

recommend the voting members of the initial Board and approve the Mayor’s appointment of the 

City Council member of the Board. 

 

 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The City Council recommends the following volunteers to the initial Board of Directors of Visit 

Newberg: 

a. Dennis Lewis 

b. Shelia Nicholas 

c. Rob Felton 

d. Loni Parrish 

e. Megan Carda 

f. Robert Griffin 

g. Shannon Buckmaster 

h. Lori Louis 

i. Jessica Bagley 

j. Christian DeBenedetti 

k. Cathy Martin 

l. Cliff Anderson 

m. Rebecca Ponzi 

n. Paul Bachand 

o. Emily Weichold 

p. Doug Peterson 

q. Andrew Heinschn 

Page 48 of 49 



 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 201X-XXXX PAGE 2 

r. Hub Marduck 

s. Britta Stewart 

t. Mark Moisan 

u. Jennifer Sitter 

 

2. The Mayor appoints and the City Council approves the appointment of Councilor Elise Yarnell-

Hollamon to be the City Council Board member. 

 

3. As the bylaws for Visit Newberg will require that the Director’s terms be staggered (approximately 

one third of the initial voting members of the Board of Directors will serve three year terms, 

approximately one third will serve two year terms, and approximately one third will serve one year 

terms) the City Council charges the Directors, at the first meeting of the Board in ______, 2019, to 

establish the term for each Director. 

 

4. This Resolution and the recommended appointments will take effect _______, 2019 and shall 

continue in full force and effect until revoked or replaced. 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: December 18, 2018. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 17th day of December, 2018. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

 

ATTEST by the Mayor this 20th day of December, 2018. 

 

 

____________________ 

Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 

Page 49 of 49 


	TLT Ad Hoc Committee 11-7-18 minutes



